
BOARD MEETING: Regular Meeting   
DATE:   Wednesday, March 22, 2023 
TIME:   6:00 p.m. 
PLACE:   Naples High School Cafeteria 
 

I. Meeting Called to Order 
II. Roll Call 
III. Adopt the Agenda of the Regular Meeting of March 22, 2023   (Board Action) 
IV. Executive Session        (Board Action) 
V. Pledge of Allegiance 
VI. Public Comments: The Board of Education invites you, the residents of our school community, to feel 

comfortable in sharing matters of interest or concern that you might have with us.  The Board President 
will be happy to recognize those of you who wish to speak.  We would ask that you come forward and 
please identify yourself before presenting your thoughts. 
   Those items brought to the attention of the Board during this time may be taken under consideration for 
future response or action. (Individual comments will be limited to three minutes.) 
    As a matter of courtesy, we ask that issues related to specific School District personnel or students be 
brought to the attention of the Superintendent of Schools privately.  Thank you for this consideration.  
 

Board Response: The Board of Education is committed to keeping communication open and transparent.  
The Board of Education President will be working with the Board and the Superintendent to make every 
effort to respond to public comments directed to the Board of Education at previous meetings, during the 
next scheduled meeting. 

VII. Points of Interest  
VIII. Superintendent Recognitions & Updates 

 Science Department Report 
 Student Representative Update 
 Superintendent Update 
 School Business Administrator Update 

IX. Board Reports 
 Budget Committee  

X. Minutes          (Board Action) 
 Regular Meeting of February 15, 2023 

XI. Independent Auditor Services       (Board Action) 
XII. Business          (Board Action) 

• Treasurer’s Report 
• Policy Updates 

XIII. Personnel         (Board Action) 
•  Unpaid Days 

XIV. Consent Agenda Items        (Board Action)  
 CSE Committee Recommendations 
 Substitutes 

XV. Executive Session               (Board Action) 
XVI. Adjournment               (Board Action)   



Regular Meeting                      March 22, 2023 
 
Minutes of a Regular Meeting of the Board of Education of Naples Central School held on 
Wednesday, March 22, 2023 at _______ p.m. in the Naples High School Cafeteria. 
 
Members Present: Robert Brautigam  Steven Mark 
   Joseph Callaghan   Gail Musnicki 

Jacob Hall   Angela Rischpater 
   Amie Levine   Maura Sullivan  
   Kelley Louthan     
 

Members Absent:      
 

Also Present:  Kevin Swartz, Chad Hunt, Kristina A. Saucke, Nicole J. Green, Katherine Piedici, 
Lindsey Evershed-Pursel, Nedelcho Neumann and Pamela Claes. 
 

A quorum being present, the meeting was called to order at _______ p.m. by Board President  
Jacob Hall. 
 
Motion:      
2nd:    
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the agenda of the Regular Meeting of  
March 22, 2023 as presented. 
Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 

Motion:      
2nd: 
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves calling an executive session at _______ p.m.   
for the purpose of discussing the employment history of a particular person or persons. 
Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
Time out of Executive Session: _______ p.m. 
 
Motion:      
2nd: 
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the minutes of the following meeting as 
presented: 

 Regular Meeting of February 15, 2023 
 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
Motion:    
2nd: 
 

Whereas, the Naples Central School District (the “School District”) issued a Request for 
Proposals for Independent Auditor on February 28, 2023; and  
 

Whereas, Mengle Metzger Barr & Co, LLP (the “Firm”) submitted a Proposal to the School 
District in response to the RFP dated March 15, 2023; and  
 

Whereas, the School District selected the Firm as its provider of Independent Auditor Services; 
 



Regular Meeting                      March 22, 2023 
 
Now Therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good and 
valuable consideration the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, the 
School District and the Firm agree as follows: 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

1. PARTIES AND TERM:  This Agreement for Independent Auditor Services is made by and 
between the Naples Central School District and  Mengel, Metzger, Barr & Co (collectively 
“the parties”).  This Agreement shall begin on March 22, 2023, and extend through the fiscal 
year ending June 30, 2025, provided that either party shall have the option to cancel the 
engagement as set forth in paragraph 8.  Any extension of the Agreement shall be memorialized 
in an addendum to this Agreement, or a separate agreement.  

 
2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FIRM: 

a. RFP.  The terms of the Request for Proposals for Independent Auditor Services 
issued by the School District on February 28, 2023 (hereinafter “RFP”) are 
incorporated herein by reference. 

  
b. Competence.  The Firm represents and warrants that it, and its employees assigned to 

work on services performed under this Agreement, possess the qualifications and 
experience set forth in the Firm’s proposal. 

 
c. Scope of Work to be Performed.  The Firm shall be responsible for completing any 

additional duties set forth in the RFP. In addition, the Firm will express an opinion on 
the fair presentation of the School District’s financial statements in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The Firm is to express an opinion on the fair 
presentation of the School District’s Extra classroom activity funds in conformity with 
another comprehensive basis of accounting (cash basis).  The Firm shall audit the 
financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information, including the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the basic financial statements, of the School District each 
fiscal year during the term. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America provide for certain required supplementary   information (RSI), such 
as management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the School District's 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who 
considers  it  to  be  an  essential  part  of  financial reporting for  placing the  basic 
financial  statements  in  an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context  
The Firm shall apply certain procedures to the School District's RSI in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These 
procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to the Firm’s inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge 
the Firm obtained during its audit of the basic financial statements. The following RSI 
is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected to 
certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 

• Management's Discussion and Analysis. 
• Schedule of Funding Progress of the Other Postemployment Benefits. 
• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budget and 

Actual- General Fund. 



Regular Meeting                      March 22, 2023 
 

• Schedule of District Contributions. 
• Schedules of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability. 
 

 The Firm shall also report on supplementary information other than RSI that 
accompanies the School District’s financial statements. The Firm will subject the 
following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in its audit of 
the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America and will provide an opinion on it in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole in a report combined with our auditor's report on the 
financial statements: 

• Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
• Schedule of Change from Original Budget to Revised Budget and Section 1318 
    of Real Property Tax Law Limit Calculation. 
• Schedule of Project Expenditures - Capital Projects Fund. 
• Net Investments in Capital Assets. 
 

d. Auditing Standards to be Followed.  The audit shall be performed in accordance with: 
 

1) Generally accepted auditing standards as set forth by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants; 

2) Applicable standards promulgated by the Comptroller of the State of New York; 
3) Applicable Regulations of the Commissioner of Education; 
4) Applicable Regulations of the Federal Government as defined in OMB Circular 

A-133 and supplements; 
5) Applicable standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; 

and 
6) Applicable statements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

(GASB). 
 

Special audits or management services shall be performed in accordance with specific 
guidelines from the Superintendent, or his/her designee.  From time-to-time, over the 
course of the year, the Firm shall be expected to provide input and advice to District 
personnel on proper accounting procedures for specific items as they relate to ensuring 
the accounts are properly prepared for full audit and compliance with all applicable 
laws and regulations.  This advice should include five hours annually, minimum.   
 

e.  Reports to be Issued.  Following the completion of the audit of the fiscal year’s 
financial statements, the Firm shall issue: 

 
1) The minimum audit schedules for a school district as issued by the New York 

State Education Department; 
 

2) An audit opinion with accompanying District-wide and fund financial statements 
and notes for all funds and account groups of the District; 

 

 



Regular Meeting                      March 22, 2023 
 

3) An audit opinion with accompanying financial statements and notes for Extra 
classroom Activity Funds; 
 

4) An audit opinion with accompanying financial statements and notes for Single 
Audit programs; and 
 

5) A management letter that includes a summation statement of audit findings, a 
description of any material weaknesses in internal controls, and 
recommendations for financial management improvements. 

 
A reportable condition shall be defined as a significant deficiency in the design or 
operation of the internal control structure, which could adversely affect the District’s 
ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent with the 
assertions of management in the financial statements. Non-reportable conditions 
discovered by the auditors shall be verbally reported to management. 
 

f. Reporting to the Board of Education.  The Firm shall conduct an annual 
presentation of the reports referenced herein, to the Naples Board of Education at a 
regularly scheduled public meeting, normally in October of each year.  This shall 
include preparation of sufficient copies of the audit report for each board member and 
the Superintendent (including management letter), and for submission to state and 
federal agencies as required by law or regulation, with five additional copies available 
for continuing disclosure purposes (minimum 18 total, 10 of which shall contain the 
management letter).   

 
 g.    Special Considerations 
 

1) Interim Fieldwork.  Interim fieldwork may be performed at a mutually agreed 
upon time during the month of May and June each year.  The objective of interim 
fieldwork is to become familiar with the various accounts, to test for internal 
controls, and to pose questions or concerns prior to the production of final year-
end statements.  Prior to any desired interim fieldwork, the Firm shall meet with 
the Executive Director of School Business Administration to discuss any 
required supporting documentation. 
   

2) Reports and Filing Requirements.  School District personnel will be provided 
drafts of all reports, management letters, and Firm opinions prior to final 
preparation and submission.  Draft statements shall be provided within one (1) 
week of completion of the formal audit to assist School District personnel in 
completion of the Management Discussion and Analysis of the report.  The 
October 15 filing deadline established in law must be met unless otherwise 
mutually agreed upon.  The final report to the Board of Education must occur by 
the first meeting in November.  Copies of the final audit report shall be provided 
to the District Clerk no later than the Friday before the meeting. 

 
3) Working Papers Retention.  All working papers associated with this Agreement 

shall be retained for a minimum of seven years (7) from the date of the audit, 
or for any additional period requested by the New York State Office of the State 
Comptroller, the New York State Education Department or  its designee, a State 



Regular Meeting                      March 22, 2023 
 

or federal agency providing direct or indirect funding. If we are aware that a 
federal awarding agency, pass-through entity, or auditee is contesting an audit 
finding, we will contact the party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance 
prior to destroying the audit documentation.  Further, all such working papers 
shall be available for examination by authorized representatives of cognizant 
agencies, the Board of Education, and subsequent independent auditors. 
 

4) Report Preparation.  Report preparation, editing and printing shall be the 
responsibility of the auditor. 
 

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT:  
a. The School District will provide the Firm with the basic information required for an 

audit.  The Business and Finance Office and responsible management personnel will 
be available during the audit to assist the Firm by providing information, 
documentation and explanations.  

  
b. Personnel will be available to provide systems documentation and explanations.  The 

Firm will be provided computer time and access to the School District computer 
hardware and software on mutually agreed terms. 

 
c. The staff of the School District will prepare those schedules for the Firm as mutually 

agreed to. 
 
d. The School District will provide the Firm with reasonable work space, desks and chairs. 

The Firm will also be provided with access to telephone lines, photocopying facilities 
and fax machines for District-related business use only. 

 
e.  The Superintendent of Schools, or his or her designee, shall be responsible for the 

overall supervision of this Agreement. 
 

4. CONFIDENTIALITY:  By the nature of the services it renders to the School District, the 
Firm will acquire knowledge of sensitive information regarding District operations, 
employees, and students.  Such information is confidential and not subject to disclosure by 
the School District under the Freedom of Information Law.  The use of such information to 
the advantage of the Firm or its employees, agents, or representatives, or the disclosure of 
such information to third parties is prohibited. 

 
5. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION:  Each party (for purposes of this Paragraph 5, the party 

of the first part shall be referred to as the “Indemnifying Party”) shall indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless the other party (for purposes of this Paragraph 5, the party of the second part 
shall be referred to as the “Indemnified Party”) from and against: (a) any and all liability 
arising out of the Indemnifying Party’s failure to comply with the terms of this Agreement, 
and any injury, loss, claims, or damages arising from the negligent operations, acts, or 
omissions of the Indemnifying Party relating to or arising out of such party’s performance of 
its obligations under this Agreement; and (b) any and all costs and expenses, including 
reasonable legal expenses, incurred by or on behalf of the Indemnified Party in connection 
with the defense of such claims.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no party shall be liable to 
any other party hereunder for any claim covered by insurance, except to the extent of any 



Regular Meeting                      March 22, 2023 
 

deductible and to the extent that the liability of such party exceeds the amount of such 
insurance coverage. 

 
6. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES:  The Firm and the School District shall 

act at all times under this Agreement as independent contractors.  Nothing in this Agreement 
shall be construed or be deemed to create a relationship of employer and employee or 
principal and agent or any relationship other than that of independent parties contracting with 
each other solely for the purpose of carrying out the purposes expressed in this Agreement.  
Each party shall be and remain responsible for all hiring and firing decisions relating to its 
personnel and for all costs associated with its personnel, including but not limited to salaries, 
wages, other compensation, taxes, tax withholding and fringe benefits (if any). 

 
7. PAYMENT:  TO BE DETERMINED. 
 
8. TERMINATION:  Each party shall have the option to cancel the engagement, provided that 

thirty (30) days’ written notice is given to the other party.   
 
9. NOTICES.  All notices provided under this Agreement must be in writing at the following 

addresses: 
 
  To the School District: Superintendent of Schools 
       Naples Central School District 

  136 North Main Street 
  Naples, New York 14512 
 

  To the Firm:  Mengel, Metzger, Barr & Co. LLC 
     100 Chestnut Street, Suite 1200 
     Rochester, NY 14604 
 
10. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains and embraces the entire agreement 

between the parties, and it or any part of it may not be changed, altered, modified, limited, 
terminated or extended orally or by any agreement between the parties unless such agreement 
be expressed in writing, signed and acknowledged by the parties hereto, their legal 
representatives, successors or assigns.   

 
11.   BOARD APPROVAL.  This Agreement is subject to approval by the Naples Board of 

Education. 
 
12.   GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of New York without reference to the principles of 
conflict of laws thereof, if any, that would operate to defeat the application of New York law.   

 
13. VENUE:  All disputes which arise in connection with, or are related to this Agreement or 

any claimed breach thereof, shall be resolved, if not sooner settled, by litigation only in 
Ontario County, New York State (or the Federal Court otherwise having territorial 
jurisdiction over such County and subject matter jurisdiction over the dispute) and not 
elsewhere, subject only to the authority of the Court in question to order changes of venue. 

  

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 



Regular Meeting                      March 22, 2023 
 
Motion:    
2nd: 
Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education approves the following Business resolutions as presented: 
 

 Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the Treasurer’s monthly reports as follows: 
For the period ending February 2023. 

 

• Upon the recommendation of the Policy Committee, with no second reading required as per  
   Policy # 1410, approval is hereby given for the following Policies: 
  

- Policy # 1650 :  Submission of Questions and Propositions at the Annual 
Meeting and Election and Special District Meetings 

- Policy # 3140 :  Flag Display 

- Policy # 3310 :  Public Access to Records 

- Policy # 3410 :  Code of Conduct on School Property 

- Policy # 3420 :  Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment in the School District 

- Policy # 5220 :  District Investments 

- Policy # 5410 :  Purchasing: Competitive Bidding and Offering 

- Policy # 5660 :  School Food Service Program (Lunch and Breakfast) 

- Policy # 5661 :  District Wellness Policy 

- Policy # 5672 :  Information Security Breach and Notification 

- Policy # 5676 :  Privacy and Security for Student Data and Teacher and Principal 
Data 

- Policy # 5741 :  Drug and Alcohol Testing for School Bus Drivers and Other 
Safety-Sensitive Employees 

- Policy # 6110 :  Code of Ethics for Board Members and All District Personnel 

- Policy # 6120 :  Equal Employment Opportunity 

- Policy # 6121 :  Sexual Harassment in the Workplace 

- Policy # 6170 :  Safety of Students (Fingerprinting Clearance of New Hires) 

- Policy # 6551 :  Family and Medical Leave Act 

- Policy # 7110 :  Comprehensive Student Attendance Policy 

- Policy # 7131 :  Education of Students in Temporary Housing 

- Policy # 7210 :  Student Evaluation, Promotion and Placement 

- Policy # 7211 :  Provision of Interpreter Services to Parents Who Are Hearing 
Impaired 

- Policy # 7214 :  Response to Intervention (RTI) Process 

- Policy # 7223 :  Participation in Graduation Ceremonies and Activities 

- Policy # 7240 :  Student Records: Access and Challenge 

- Policy # 7250 :  Student Privacy, Parental Access to Information, and 
Administration of Certain Physical Examinations to Minors 



Regular Meeting                      March 22, 2023 
 

- Policy # 7360 :  Weapons in School and the Gun-Free Schools Act 

- Policy # 7530 :  Child Abuse and Maltreatment 

- Policy # 7551 :  Sexual Harassment of Students 

- Policy # 7560 :  Dignity for All Students Act 

- Policy # 7611 :  Student Appropriate Special Education Programs and Related 
Services for Students with Disabilities 

- Policy # 7612 :  Grouping by Similarity of Needs 

- Policy # 7614 :  Preschool Special Education Program 

- Policy # 7615 :  Least Restrictive Environment 

- Policy # 7616 :  School-Wide Pre-Referral Approaches and Intervention 

- Policy # 7617 :  Declassification of Students with Disabilities 

- Policy # 7618 :  Use of Time Out Rooms 

- Policy # 7620 :  Students with Disabilities Participating in School District 
Programs 

- Policy # 7621 :  Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 

- Policy # 7631 :  Committee on Special Education (CSE)/Committee on 
Preschool Special Education (CPSE) 

- Policy # 7640 :  Confidentiality and Access to Student Individualized Education 
Program (IEP) 

- Policy # 7670 :  Due Process Complaints: Selection and Board Appointment of 
Impartial Hearing Officers 

- Policy # 8130 :  Equal Educational Opportunities 

- Policy # 8271 :  Internet Safety/Internet Content Filtering Policy 

- Policy # 8370 :  Animal Dissection Opt-Out 

- Policy # 8490 :  Title IX and Sex Discrimination in the School District 
 

    

 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
Motion:      
2nd:  
Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education approves the following personnel item as presented:  
 

• Resolved, that the Board of Education approves the following request for unpaid leave: 
  

- Trisa L. Harvey: Three (3) Unpaid days – From May 22, 2023 through May 24, 2023
 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
 
 



Regular Meeting                      March 22, 2023 
 
Motion:      
2nd:  
Resolved, that upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Naples Central School 
District Board of Education, approves the Consent Agenda Items as presented: 
 

a. Resolved, that the Board of Education accepts the committee recommendations from the 
following meetings: 
-   CSE Committee actions of February 9, 2023; and February 28, 2023.  

 

b. Resolved, that the Board of Education hereby approves the following Substitute appointments, 
pending a successful background clearance report provided to the school as a result of the 
fingerprinting process: 
Name          Position            Address 
Jordon Wilkins      Food Service Helper   33 Academy Street, Apt. 1, Naples, NY 14512        
Jordon Wilkins      Cleaner             33 Academy Street, Apt. 1, Naples, NY 14512 

     Kristin Girard      Food Service Helper   8 Cohocton Street, Naples, NY 14512 
     Hannah Steff      Teacher       182 North Main Street, Naples, NY 14512  
     Molly Dutcher      Teacher       4946 Wyfells Road, Canandaigua, NY 14424   

 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
Motion:      
2nd: 
Resolved, that the Board of Education approves calling an executive session at _______ p.m.   
for the purpose of discussing the possible acquisition of a particular parcel of land. 
Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 
 
Time out of Executive Session: _______ p.m. 
 
Motion:      
2nd:    
There being no further business, the Regular Meeting of March 22, 2023 is hereby adjourned at 
_______ p.m.  
 

Voting Yes:    Motion Carried 
Voting No:    Motion Denied 



AGREEMENT FOR INDEPENDENT AUDITOR SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, the Naples Central School District (the “School District”) issued a Request for 

Proposals for Independent Auditor Services on February 28, 2023; and 
 

 WHEREAS, Mengel, Metzger, Barr & Co. (the “Firm”) submitted a Proposal to the School District 
in response to the RFP dated February 28, 2023; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the School District selected the Firm as its provider of Independent Auditor Services; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and other good 
and valuable consideration the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, the School 
District and the Firm agree as follows. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
1. PARTIES AND TERM:  This Agreement for Independent Auditor Services is made by and 

between the Naples Central School District and  Mengel, Metzger, Barr & Co (collectively “the 
parties”).  This Agreement shall begin on March 22, 2023, and extend through the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2025, provided that either party shall have the option to cancel the engagement as set forth 
in paragraph 8.  Any extension of the Agreement shall be memorialized in an addendum to this 
Agreement, or a separate agreement.  

2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE FIRM: 
 

a. RFP. The terms of the Request for Proposals for Independent Auditor Services issued 
by the School District on February 28, 2023 (hereinafter “RFP”) are incorporated herein 
by reference.  

 
b. Competence.  The Firm represents and warrants that it, and its employees assigned 

to work on services performed under this Agreement, possess the qualifications and 
experience set forth in the Firm’s proposal. 

 
c. Scope of Work to be Performed.  The Firm shall be responsible for completing 

any additional duties set forth in the RFP. In addition, the Firm will express an 
opinion on the fair presentation of the School District’s financial statements in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.  The Firm is to express 
an opinion on the fair presentation of the School District’s Extra classroom activity 
funds in conformity with another comprehensive basis of accounting (cash basis).  
The Firm shall audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, including the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial 
statements, of the School District each fiscal year during the term. Accounting 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain 
required supplementary   information (RSI), such as management’s discussion and 
analysis (MD&A), to supplement the School District's basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers  it  to  be  an  
essential  part  of  financial reporting for  placing the  basic financial  statements  in  



an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context  The Firm shall apply 
certain procedures to the School District's RSI in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. These procedures 
will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to the Firm’s inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge the Firm obtained during its audit of the basic financial statements. The 
following RSI is required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and will 
be subjected to certain limited procedures, but will not be audited: 

 
• Management's Discussion and Analysis. 
• Schedule of Funding Progress of the Other Postemployment Benefits. 
• Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance Budget 

and Actual- General Fund. 
• Schedule of District Contributions. 
• Schedules of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability. 

 
 The Firm shall also report on supplementary information other than RSI that 

accompanies the School District’s financial statements. The Firm will subject the 
following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in its audit 
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America and will provide an opinion on 
it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in a report combined with our 
auditor's report on the financial statements: 

 
• Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
• Schedule of Change from Original Budget to Revised Budget and Section 

1318 of Real Property Tax Law Limit Calculation. 
• Schedule of Project Expenditures - Capital Projects Fund. 
• Net Investments in Capital Assets. 

 
d. Auditing Standards to be Followed.  The audit shall be performed in accordance 

with: 

1) Generally accepted auditing standards as set forth by the American Institute 
of Certified Public Accountants; 

2) Applicable standards promulgated by the Comptroller of the State of New 
York; 

3) Applicable Regulations of the Commissioner of Education; 



4) Applicable Regulations of the Federal Government as defined in OMB 
Circular A-133 and supplements; 

5) Applicable standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States; and 

6) Applicable statements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB). 

 
Special audits or management services shall be performed in accordance with 
specific guidelines from the Superintendent, or his/her designee.  From time-to-
time, over the course of the year, the Firm shall be expected to provide input and 
advice to District personnel on proper accounting procedures for specific items as 
they relate to ensuring the accounts are properly prepared for full audit and 
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.  This advice should include 
five hours annually, minimum.   

e.  Reports to be Issued.  Following the completion of the audit of the fiscal year’s 
financial statements, the Firm shall issue: 

1) The minimum audit schedules for a school district as issued by the New 
York State Education Department; 

2) An audit opinion with accompanying District-wide and fund financial 
statements and notes for all funds and account groups of the District; 

3) An audit opinion with accompanying financial statements and notes for 
Extra classroom Activity Funds; 

4) An audit opinion with accompanying financial statements and notes for 
Single Audit programs; and 

5) A management letter that includes a summation statement of audit findings, 
a description of any material weaknesses in internal controls, and 
recommendations for financial management improvements. 

 
A reportable condition shall be defined as a significant deficiency in the design or 
operation of the internal control structure, which could adversely affect the 
District’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data consistent 
with the assertions of management in the financial statements. Non-reportable 
conditions discovered by the auditors shall be verbally reported to management. 

f. Reporting to the Board of Education.  The Firm shall conduct an annual 
presentation of the reports referenced herein, to the Naples Board of Education at a 
regularly scheduled public meeting, normally in October of each year.  This shall 
include preparation of sufficient copies of the audit report for each board member 
and the Superintendent (including management letter), and for submission to state 
and federal agencies as required by law or regulation, with five additional copies 
available for continuing disclosure purposes (minimum 18 total, 10 of which shall 
contain the management letter).   



 g. Special Considerations 
 

1) Interim Fieldwork.  Interim fieldwork may be performed at a mutually 
agreed upon time during the month of May and June each year.  The 
objective of interim fieldwork is to become familiar with the various 
accounts, to test for internal controls, and to pose questions or concerns 
prior to the production of final year-end statements.  Prior to any desired 
interim fieldwork, the Firm shall meet with the Executive Director of 
School Business Administration to discuss any required supporting 
documentation.   

2) Reports and Filing Requirements.  School District personnel will be 
provided drafts of all reports, management letters, and Firm opinions prior 
to final preparation and submission.  Draft statements shall be provided 
within one (1) week of completion of the formal audit to assist School 
District personnel in completion of the Management Discussion and 
Analysis of the report.  The October 15 filing deadline established in law 
must be met unless otherwise mutually agreed upon.  The final report to the 
Board of Education must occur by the first meeting in November.  Copies 
of the final audit report shall be provided to the District Clerk no later than 
the Friday before the meeting.   

3) Working Papers Retention.  All working papers associated with this 
Agreement shall be retained for a minimum of seven years (7) from the date 
of the audit, or for any additional period requested by the New York State 
Office of the State Comptroller, the New York State Education Department 
or  its designee, a State or federal agency providing direct or indirect 
funding. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency, pass-through 
entity, or auditee is contesting an audit finding, we will contact the 
party(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the 
audit documentation.  Further, all such working papers shall be available 
for examination by authorized representatives of cognizant agencies, the 
Board of Education, and subsequent independent auditors. 

4) Report Preparation.  Report preparation, editing and printing shall be the 
responsibility of the auditor. 

 
3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT:  

 
a. The School District will provide the Firm with the basic information required for 

an audit.  The Business and Finance Office and responsible management personnel 
will be available during the audit to assist the Firm by providing information, 
documentation and explanations.   

 
b. Personnel will be available to provide systems documentation and explanations.  

The Firm will be provided computer time and access to the School District 
computer hardware and software on mutually agreed terms. 



 
c. The staff of the School District will prepare those schedules for the Firm as 

mutually agreed to. 
 
d. The School District will provide the Firm with reasonable work space, desks and 

chairs. The Firm will also be provided with access to telephone lines, photocopying 
facilities and fax machines for District-related business use only. 

 
e.  The Superintendent of Schools, or his or her designee, shall be responsible for the 

overall supervision of this Agreement. 
 
4. CONFIDENTIALITY:  By the nature of the services it renders to the School District, the 

Firm will acquire knowledge of sensitive information regarding District operations, 
employees, and students.  Such information is confidential and not subject to disclosure by 
the School District under the Freedom of Information Law.  The use of such information 
to the advantage of the Firm or its employees, agents, or representatives, or the disclosure 
of such information to third parties is prohibited. 

 
5. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION:  Each party (for purposes of this Paragraph 5, the 

party of the first part shall be referred to as the “Indemnifying Party”) shall indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless the other party (for purposes of this Paragraph 5, the party of the 
second part shall be referred to as the “Indemnified Party”) from and against: (a) any and 
all liability arising out of the Indemnifying Party’s failure to comply with the terms of this 
Agreement, and any injury, loss, claims, or damages arising from the negligent operations, 
acts, or omissions of the Indemnifying Party relating to or arising out of such party’s 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement; and (b) any and all costs and 
expenses, including reasonable legal expenses, incurred by or on behalf of the Indemnified 
Party in connection with the defense of such claims.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no 
party shall be liable to any other party hereunder for any claim covered by insurance, except 
to the extent of any deductible and to the extent that the liability of such party exceeds the 
amount of such insurance coverage. 

 
6. RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PARTIES:  The Firm and the School District shall 

act at all times under this Agreement as independent contractors.  Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be construed or be deemed to create a relationship of employer and 
employee or principal and agent or any relationship other than that of independent parties 
contracting with each other solely for the purpose of carrying out the purposes expressed 
in this Agreement.  Each party shall be and remain responsible for all hiring and firing 
decisions relating to its personnel and for all costs associated with its personnel, including 
but not limited to salaries, wages, other compensation, taxes, tax withholding and fringe 
benefits (if any). 

7. PAYMENT:  TO BE DETERMINED. 
 
8. TERMINATION:  Each party shall have the option to cancel the engagement, provided 

that thirty (30) days’ written notice is given to the other party.   



9. NOTICES.  All notices provided under this Agreement must be in writing at the following 
addresses: 

 
  To the School District: Superintendent of Schools 
     Naples Central School District 

136 North Main Street 
Naples, New York 14512 
 

  To the Firm:  Name 
     Address 
     Address 
 
10. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement contains and embraces the entire agreement 

between the parties, and it or any part of it may not be changed, altered, modified, limited, 
terminated or extended orally or by any agreement between the parties unless such 
agreement be expressed in writing, signed and acknowledged by the parties hereto, their 
legal representatives, successors or assigns.   

 
11.   BOARD APPROVAL.  This Agreement is subject to approval by the Naples Board of 

Education. 
 
12.   GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of New York without reference to the principles of 
conflict of laws thereof, if any, that would operate to defeat the application of New York 
law.   

 
13. VENUE:  All disputes which arise in connection with, or are related to this Agreement or 

any claimed breach thereof, shall be resolved, if not sooner settled, by litigation only in 
Ontario County, New York State (or the Federal Court otherwise having territorial 
jurisdiction over such County and subject matter jurisdiction over the dispute) and not 
elsewhere, subject only to the authority of the Court in question to order changes of venue. 

 
 The undersigned hereby declare that they have read the foregoing Agreement and any and 
all other materials submitted in connection with the same, and agree to abide by the requirements 
therein. 
 
For the School District:    For the Firm: 
 
Name:  Chad Hunt         Name:  Thomas Zuber, CPA 
Title:  School Business Administrator  Title:  Partner    
Date:  3/16/2023     Date:  3/15/2023 
 
Date approved by the Board of Education: 
 
March 22, 2023 






















































































































































































































































































































	01 - Regular Meeting of March 22, 2023 - AGENDA - Initial.pdf
	02 - Regular Meeting of March 22, 2023 - BLANK MINUTES
	04 - Agreement For Independent Auditor Services - Mengel, Metzger, Barr & Co., LLC
	05 - Treasurer's Report - February 2023
	Policy 1650 - 6120
	Policy 6121 - 7250
	Policy 7360 - 8490

